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4. Consider an executive session.

It was moved by Alderman Addy, seconded by Alderman Antongw to consider an
executive session for a matter of potential litigation and a persghnel matter. All the
aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the mghtion carried.

It was movey by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Tgylor to enter into an
executive se$sion for a matter of potential litigation regardiflg land ownership and a
personnel mager in the Police Department. All the aldermgen present voting aye,
Mayor Tannehi}f declared the motion carried.

It was moved by Rlderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Addy to reject the counter-
offer of $15,000.0Q per acre from Robert Edmister for property in the West Oxford
Loop Project. All the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the
motion carried.

It was moved by Alderfjan Howell, seconded by Afderman Bailey to authorize Bart
Robinson to offer up to $8,500.00 per acre to Ropert Edmister, contingent on
approval from the Lafayette County Board of Sypervisors. All the aidermen present
voting aye, Mayor Tannehil\declared the motigh carried.

It was moved by Alderman Hayvell, second by Alderman Bailey to authorize the
Mayor to sign a contract with Kvin Christjan for a sewer easement in the amount of
$10,800.00, contingent on counsgl's appfoval. All the aldermen present voting aye,
Mayor Tannehill declared the motlgn cried.

It was moved by Alderman Howell, g " conded by Alderman Bailey to return to regular
session. All the aldermen present) ot g aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the motion
carried. /

V4 ’3

5. Recess to meet on August 144 017 at 1:¢ Opm

It was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconde | by Alderman Addy to recess the
meeting until August 14, 2017 at 1:00pm. AR \the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor
Tannehill declared the / ption carried. *».

Kty / d /A \
Rob}mTé’nne\hilayor \
g

li //A .’ ~ ‘\4.‘_
' ()' RN~ \
Ashley At dhson, City Clerk

{/ A
f) 4

If you neespecial assistance related to a disability, please cont“fict the ADA
Coordinatpr or visit the office at: 107 Courthouse Square, Oxford, MS 38655. (662)
232-2458 (Voice) or (662) 232-2300 (Voice/TTY)

8/16/17, 8:33

AM
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Rick Addy, AldermanWard |/
Mark Huelse, Alderman Ward }/
Janice Antonow, Aldermian Ward 1li
Ulysses Howell, Aldermah \ifard iV
Preston Taylor, Alderman Ward V
Jason Bailey, Alderman WWard VI
John Morgan, Aldermarf/At Large-absent
Ashley Atkinson- City/Clerk %
Bart Robinson- Dirggtor of PubliciWorks-absent
Braxton Tullos, Hushan ResourcesDirector

- Cindy Semmes- Bxecutive Assistantto the Mayor
Jimmy Allgood- Director of Emergendy Management
Randy Barber-fDirector of Building Department
Greg Pinion- Pirector of Buildings & Groynds
Judy DanielDirector of Planning Departrhent

2. Adopt thefagenda for the meeting.

It was rnfoved by Alderman Addy, seconded by ¥lderman Howell to adopt the agenda

for thefmeeting. All the aldermen present voting%aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the
motigh carried. \

3. Copisider budget requests for fiscal year 2017-2018§rom the following departments:

Uhe Board heard budget requests from the following deépartments but no action was
aken.

a. Emergency Management

b. Human Resources

c. Building Department

d. Buildings & Grounds Department

e. Family Crisis Services

f. Oxford-Lafayette County Public Library
g. Planning Department

QHO4XO0 40 ALID ‘¥Z "ON ¥0Og JLANIN

8/16/17, 8:33 AM
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MINUTES

THE CITY OF
City of Oxford OXFORD
Board of Aldermen

Recess Meeting
Tuesday, August 8, 2017, 9:00 am - 11:30 am
Old RSVP Building next to City Hall

Notice that certain aldermen will be included in the meeting via teleconference,
subject to the City of Oxford Code of Ordinances, Section 2-82.

1. Call to order.

The meeting of the Mayor and Board of Alderman of the City of Oxford, Mississippi,
was called to order by Mayor Tannehill at 9:00am on Tuesday, August 8, 2017, in the
conference room of the old RSVP building when and where the following were
present:

Robyn Tannehill, Mayor

Rick Addy, Alderman Ward |

Mark Huelse, Alderman Ward |l

Janice Antonow, Alderman Ward Il
Ulysses Howell, Alderman Ward IV
Preston Taylor, Alderman Ward V

Jason Bailey, Alderman Ward VI

John Morgan, Alderman At Large-absent

Ashley Atkinson- City Clerk

Bart Robinson- Director of Public Works-absent
Braxton Tullos, Human Resources Director

Cindy Semmes- Executive Assistant to the Mayor
Jimmy Aligood- Director of Emergency Management
Randy Barber- Director of Building Department
Greg Pinion- Director of Buildings & Grounds

Judy Daniel- Director of Planning Department

2. Adopt the agenda for the meeting.

It was moved by Alderman Addy, seconded by Alderman Howell to adopt the agenda
for the meeting. All the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the
motion carried.

w

Consider budget requests for fiscal year 2017-2018 from the following departments:

The Board heard budget requests from the following departments but no action was
taken.

a. Emergency Management

b. Human Resources

c. Building Department

d. Buildings & Grounds Department

e. Family Crisis Services

f. Oxford-Lafayette County Public Library
g. Planning Department

8/16/17, 8:33

dmin

AM
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4. Consider an executive session.
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aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehili declared the motion carried.

It was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Taylor to enter into an
executive session for a matter of potential litigation regarding land ownership and a
personnel matter in the Police Department. All the aldermen present voting aye,
Mayor Tannehill declared the motion carried.

it was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Addy to reject the counter-
offer of $15,000.00 per acre from Robert Edmister for property in the West Oxford
Loop Project. All the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehili declared the
motion carried.

It was moved by Alderman Howell, seconded by Alderman Bailey to authorize Bart
Robinson to offer up to $8,500.00 per acre to Robert Edmister, contingent on
approval from the Lafayette County Board of Supervisors. All the aidermen present
voting aye, Mayor Tannehili declared the motion carried.

it was moved by Alderman Howell, seconded by Alderman Bailey to authorize the
Mayor to sign a contract with Kevin Christian for a sewer easement in the amount of
$10,800.00, contingent on counsel's approval. All the aldermen present voting aye,
Mayor Tannehill declared the motion carried.

It was moved by Alderman Howeli, seconded by Alderman Bailey to return to reguiar
session. All the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehili declared the motion
carried.

Recess to meet on August 14, 2017 at 1:00pm.

it was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Addy to recess the
meeting until August 14, 2017 at 1:00pm. Ali the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor
Tannehill declared the motion carried.

Robyw Tahnehill/ Mayor

Ashley A‘tkmson Clty Clerk

if you need special assistance related to a disability, please contact the ADA
Coordinator or visit the office at: 107 Courthouse Square, Oxford, MS 38655. (662)
232-2453 (Voice) or (662) 232-2300 (Voice/TTY)

8/16/17, 8:33 AM

—executive session for maﬁer of potentlaljltigatlon and a personnel matter. All fig° "0 DEVENTSTII
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THE CITY OF

City of Oxford ) OXFORD

Board of Aldermen

Recess Meeting

Monday, August 14, 2017, 1:00 pm - 3:30 pm
Old RSVP Building next to City Hall

1. Call to order.

The meeting of the Mayor and Board of Alderman of the City of Oxford, Mississippi,
was called to order by Mayor Tannehill at 1:00pm on Monday, August 14, 2017, in the
conference room of the old RSVP building when and where the following were
present:

Robyn Tannehill, Mayor

Rick Addy, Alderman Ward |

Mark Huelse, Alderman Ward Il
Janice Antonow, Alderman Ward IlI
Ulysses Howell, Alderman Ward IV
Preston Taylor, Alderman Ward V
Jason Bailey, Alderman Ward VI
John Morgan, Alderman At Large

Ashley Atkinson- City Clerk

Bart Robinson- Director of Public Works

Braxton Tullos, Human Resources Director
Cindy Semmes- Executive Assistant to the Mayor
Hollis Green-Director, Oxford Conference Center
Hayden Guest-Sales, Oxford Conference Center
Bo Ragon-Superintendent, City Shop

Mark Heath-Chief, Oxford Fire Department

Jim Pryor-Historic Properties

2. Adopt the agenda for the meeting.

It was moved by Alderman Howell, seconded by Alderman Morgan to adopt the
agenda for the meeting. All the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehill 1
declared the motion carried.

3. Consider budget requests for fiscal year 2017-2018 from the following departments:

The board heard requests from the following departments.
Boys & Girls Club

a
b. Oxford Conference Center

12

Historic Properties
d. Yoknapatawpha Arts Council
Alderman Howell left the meeting at this time.
4. Consider an executive session.

It was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Antonow to consider an
executive session for a matter of potential litigation. All the alderman present voting

min

aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the motion carried.
It was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Antonow to consider an |

executive session regarding a matter of potential litigation regarding a contract. All
“ the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor Tannehill declared the motipn-jcafried,

10/1/2017, 10:47
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I
| a. City Shop |

| b. Oxford Fire Department

I \
H 5. Recess to meet on August 15, 2017 at 12:00pm. I

it was moved by Alderman Bailey, seconded by Alderman Morgan to recess the I
| meeting to August 15, 2017 at 12:00pm. All the aldermen present voting aye, Mayor |
‘ Tannehill declared the motion carried.

=Yy AW/ |

“ Robyn.Tafihehill, Mayor ‘

| Ashliéy Atkinson, City Clerk H

20f2 10/1/2017, 10:47 AM “
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2017-2018—- Boys & Girls Clubs of North MS —LOU Advisory Board

Quentin Brewer

205 Olde Castle Loop
Oxford, MS 38655
(601)906-4876
Quentin.brewer@bxs.com

Melissa Buford

2530 West Jackson Ave.
Oxford, MS 38655
662-236-3531
mbuford@woodforest.com

Jacqueline Certion
40 CR 173

Oxford MS 38655
662-202-2932
jcertion@olemiss.edu

Elijah Gross

721 Highway 334
Oxford, MS 38655
662.832.0813
egross@trustmark.com

Jolee Hussey

209 Woodland Hills Drive
Oxford, MS. 38655
662-832-0521
joleehussey@att.net

Dicki King

101 Price Street
Oxford, MS. 38655
662-234-6259
Dicki.king@gmail.com

Mary Beth Marchbanks

80 CR 3022

Oxford, MS 38655
662.234.6748 (H)
marybmarchbanks@yahoo.com

Dr. Stephen Monroe
620 Grove Forest Way
Oxford, MS 38655
smonroe@olemiss.edu

Coleman Morrison

2100 Old Taylor Road, #355
Oxford, MS 38655
662-234-4044
cmorrison@randallcg.com

Jerad Myers - Chair

200 Enterprise Drive

POB 1155

Oxford, MS 38655
jmyers@billturnerlaw.com

Dr. Judith Thompson
306 CR 204

Abbeville MS 38601
jgthomps@olemiss.edu

Todd Wade

5004 Currie Dr
Oxford, MS 38655
(662) 701-8965

Tmwade71(@gmail.com

Scott Vasilyev

PO Box 1610
Oxford, MS 38655
662-816-1100
radin1@bellsouth.net

Hardie Meeks

16 Gum Tree Drive
Oxford, MS 38655
662-832-7022
hmeeks@oxfordpolice.net
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FINANCIAL REPORT

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF ‘
NORTH MISSISSIPPI, INC. f

June 30,2016 ‘
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_MINUTE BOOK No. 74, CITY OF OXFORD

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors
Boys and Girls Clubs of North Mississippi, Inc.
Tupelo, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Boys and Girls Clubs of North Mississippi, Inc.
(“the Organization”), a nonprofit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements. We have also audited the accompanying statement of financial position
and cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, imple-
mentation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finan-
cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of the Organization as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 and the changes in its cash flows for the years then ended
and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America.

(98}

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 4 of 69
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the Organization’s 2015 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit
opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated September 30, 2015. In our opinion, the summa-

rized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Nod ﬂ”ck@? k.

Tupelo, Mississippi
September 28, 2016

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 5 of 69




Statements of Financial Position

MINUTE BOOKNoP WLSGFFRS OF OXFORD

— —NORTH-MISS SSIPPI ANC.———— —

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Grants receivable

Total current assets

Property and Equipment
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Construction in progress

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total property and equipment, net
Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

_ SAFEGUARD - DEMENT 61-9165

2016 2015

$ 444476 3 413,829
25,330 34,282
469,806 448,111
1,028,648 1,028,648
744,649 732,649
126,801 126,801

511,056 .
2,411,154 1,888,098
902,307 837,506
1,508,847 1,050,592
$ 1,978,653  $ 1,498,703
$ 31225  § 21,517
31,225 21,517
1,947,428 1,473,369
= 3,817
1,947,428 1,477,186
$ 1,978,653  $ 1,498,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
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Statements of Activities

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF
NORTH MISSISSIPPIL, INC.

Year ended June 30, 2016 with Comparative Totals for the Year ended June 30, 2015

Temporarily 2015
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Support and Revenue
Support
Grants:
Government $ 143,890 $ - $ 143,890 § 140,811
Other 109,473 - 109,473 72,006
Contributions 260,945 394,483 655,428 253,822
United Way allocations 154,002 - 154,002 147,750
Endowment distributions 17,755 150,000 167,755 17,22%
Special events 156,716 - 156,716 138,342
Total support 842,781 544,483 1,387,264 769,953
Revenue
Program fees 46,947 - 46,947 50,773
Other revenue:
Commissions, net - - - 511
Interest 91 - 91 51
Miscellaneous 1,145 - 1,145 3,863
Total revenue 48,183 - 48,183 55,198
Total support and revenue 890,964 544,483 1,435,447 825,151
Assets released from restriction:
Satisfaction of usage restrictions 548,300 (548,300) - -
Expenses
Program services
Membership development 772,164 - 772,164 736,499
Supporting services:
Management and general 115,825 - 115,825 110,477,
Fundraising 77,216 - 77,216 73,651
Total expenses 965,205 - 965,205 920,627
Change in net assets 474,059 (3,817) 470,242 (95,476
Net assets, beginning of year 1,473,369 3,817 1,477,186 1,572,662
Net assets, end of year $ 1947428 § - § 1,947,428 $§ 1,477,186

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6 Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 7 ¢
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Compensation and related expenses:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Employee health and retirement benefits

Total

Background checks

Bank charges
Conferences and meetings
Insurance

Marketing

Membership dues
Miscellaneous

Postage

Professional fees

Rental, repairs and maintenance
Supplies

Telephone

Travel

Utilities

Total expenses before depreciation
Depreciation

Total expenses

o. 745‘3®ITYF®F"0X°F®RD

——  BOYSAND GIRLS CLUBS OF
NORTH MISSISSIPPI, INC.

Year ended June 30,2016 with Comparative Totals for the Year ended June 30, 2015

SAFEGUARD DEMENT61 9165

Program
Service Supporting Services
Membership Management
Development and General Fundraising Total
$ 462,738 $ 69,411 § 46,274 $ 578.,4.
38,713 5,807 3,871 48,3
42,689 6,403 4,269 53,3
544,140 81,621 54,414 680,1
1,270 191 127 1.5
2,824 423 282 3.5
19,999 3,000 2,000 24,9
24,026 3,604 2,403 30,0.
6,883 1,032 688 8,6
8,610 1,291 861 10,7:
6,209 931 621 7,7
3,828 574 383 4,7
10,961 1,644 1,096 13,7
25,665 3,850 2,566 32,0
32,210 4,832 3221 40,2
16,331 2,450 1,633 20,4
7,756 1,164 776 9,6'
9,611 1,442 961 12,0
720,323 108,049 72,032 900,4
51,841 1,776 5,184 64,8
$ 772,164 $ 115,825 $ 77,216 § 965,2:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Confidential Infor
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Statements of Cash Flows

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF
NORTH MISSISSIPPI, INC.

Years ended June 30,2016 and 2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to cash flows
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable
Decrease in pledges receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property and equipment

Cash flows used in investing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

2016 2015
470,242 (95,476
64,801 67,933
8,952 (16,961

- 1 oo,ooo‘i
9,708 (2,012
553,703 53,484
(523,056) (24,411
(523,056) (24,411
30,647 29,073
413,829 384,756
444,476 413,829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

8 Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 9
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Notes to Financial Statements

MINUTE BOOK Neeifs CQIHWFOF OXFORD

B ~ NORTH MISSISSIPPI, INC. B

June 30, 2016
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities

The Boys and Girls Club of North Mississippi, Inc. is a nonprofit organization dedicated to inspiring and enabling
the youth of North Mississippi to realize their full potential as productive, responsible, and caring citizens. The
Club provides after-school and summer educational and recreational programs.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with the principles of fund ac-

counting. All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the
donor.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Club considers cash, demand deposits, and certificates of deposit purchased with a maturity of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Grants and Pledges Receivable
The Organization receives grants and contracts from federal, state, and local agencies to be used for specific pro-
grams. The excess of reimbursable expenditures over cash receipts is included in grants receivable.

Pledges receivable represent unconditional promises to give and are reported at the face amount of the underlying
pledge due to the short maturity associated with recorded pledges receivable.

The Organization uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible receivables. The allowance is based on
prior year’s experience and management’s analysis of specific receivables. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, manage-
ment determined that no allowance for uncollectible receivables was required.

Income Tax Status
The Organization has qualified as an organization exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Inter-
nal Revenue Code.

On a continuing basis, management analyzes the Organization’s tax positions, and, when a tax position meets the
measurement and recognition principles outlined in FASB ASC 740, the Organization accrues a liability for un-
recognized tax benefits. Any related interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits are included
as a component of other expense.

The Organization’s federal informational return is subject to examination by the taxing authorities generally for
three years after it is filed. Management has evaluated the tax positions taken, and has not identified any positions
that are unlikely to be sustained upon examination.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost or estimated fair market value on the date received if donated.

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided on a straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 5 to
10 years for furniture and equipment and 40 years for buildings and leasehold improvements.

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute  Page 10 of 69
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Notes to Financial Statements — (continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the programs and activities of the Club have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain expenses for salaries and related benefits, supplies, and

rent have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on estimated time and func- |

tional usage.

Evaluation of Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Organization has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through the date of the Independent Auditors’ Report, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2. CASH

The Organization’s cash deposits exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation coverage limits as of June
30,2016 by $212,639

NOTE 3. ENDOWMENTS AT CREATE FOUNDATION INC.

The Organization is the stated beneficiary of three endowment funds held at CREATE Foundation Inc, a commu-
nity foundation located in Tupelo, Mississippi. The Organization has granted variance power associated with
these assets to CREATE Foundation, Inc. However, as the named beneficiary of these endowments, the Organiza-
tion is eligible to receive annual distributions from these endowment funds pursuant to the community
foundation’s spending policy, which is currently 4% per year based upon the market value of the respective en-
dowment as of the end of the previous calendar year.

Since these endowments were funded by resource provider contributions directly to CREATE Foundation or
through agency transactions, the endowments are not included as assets of the Organization in accordance with
FASB ASC 958-605.

NOTE 4. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

As of June 30, 2015, the Organization’s temporarily restricted net assets are comprised primarily of donor re-
stricted assets for the maintenance and upkeep of the Oxford clubhouse. During the year ended June 30, 2016 the
Organization received donor restricted funds of $§ 394,483 for the renovation of designated clubhouse facilities
that was accounted for as temporarily restricted net assets whose usage restrictions were satisfied during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016. In addition, the Organization received a $ 150,000 distribution from an endowment
fund described in Note 3 that was earmarked for the completion of renovations related to the Oxford clubhouse
facility that was also accounted for as temporarily restricted net assets whose usage restrictions were satisfied dur-
ing the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

NOTE 5. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The organization has a defined contribution 401(k) plan covering substantially all of its full-time employees. Eli-
gible employees may contribute 25% of their compensation to this plan. The Club’s contribution is 5% of eligible
compensation. Total plan expense amounted to $ 13,787 and $ 14,917 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

NOTE 6. OPERATING LEASES

The Club leases two buildings in Tupelo and one lot in Oxford on which the Oxford clubhouse is located. One of
the Tupelo leases requires rent payments of $ 1 per year for forty- two years. The other Tupelo building is provid-
ed rent free to the Club. The lot in Oxford requires rent payments of $ 1 per year for nine years with options for
renewal at maturity.

10
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The Club also leases administrative office space from CVREATE Foundatlon on a month-to month ba51s and
equipment on an as-needed basis.

Total rent expense under all operating leases amounted to $ 6,392 and $ 6,580 for 2016 and 2015, respectively.

At June 30, 2016, the Organization had no material obligation under non-cancelable leases with terms in excess of
one year.

NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives a portion of its revenues from government grants and contracts, many of whom are
subject to audit by the grantor agency. The ultimate determination of amounts received under these programs
generally is based upon allowable costs reported and audited. Until such audits have been completed and final
settlement reached, there exists a contingency to refund any amount received in excess of allowable costs. Man-
agement is of the opinion that no material liability will result from such audits.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Organization entered into a memorandum of understanding with a
donor organization who provided a conditional commitment to give $ 500,000 in support of the direct cost of ren-
ovations of certain clubhouse facilities. The terms of the agreement specify that the commitment will be paid by
the donor via invoice or estimate submitted by the Organization for eligible expenses incurred, and eligible ex-
penses are defined as direct costs of renovation of the designated clubhouse facilities. Contribution income
recognized associated with this commitment was $ 394,483 and $ 0 during the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

The Organization entered into a construction contract in the amount of $ 440,309 (including change orders), for
the renovation of the Oxford clubhouse. At June 30, 2016, the Organization’s remaining contractual commitment
under this contract amounted to $ 46,870.

NOTE 8. CONCENTRATIONS

A significant portion of the Organization’s support comes from federal, state, and local grants. This represents a
concentration of revenues from particular sources. The Organization’s operations could be adversely affected if
these grant funds were to become unavailable in future periods

11
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Boys & Girls Clubs of North Mississippi
2017-2018 Board Roster
Board Member Mailing Address Contact Info Term of
Position ‘Wphone: Office
Company Ephone:
Email: Mphone:
FAX:
Ashford, Chip 1418 Staci Circle 662.407.4223 Appointed
Vice President CRA & Loans Tupelo, MS 38801 06/11
BankPlus 662.321.1427
chipashford@bankplus.net 662.796.3674
Beam, Jennifer 406 Reeves Street 662.316.8281 Appointed
Retired New Albany, MS 38652 0717
mrsjlhbeam@yahoo.com
Brewer, Kelly 106 Windham Lane Appointed
Legacy Hospice Ripley, MS 38663 662.587.7500 8/16
kidbrewer@gmail.com
Britton, Marcus Louis 1756 Pecan Grove 662.844.4711 Appointed |
Physician Tupelo, MS 38801 662.844.4801 10/13
Nephrology & Hypertension Associates 662.760.8510
mlbritton 1 @yahoo.com
Byrne, Tom 343 East Main, Ste. B1 662.456.5757 Appointed |
The Byrme CPA Firm, P.A. Tupelo, MS 38804 10/13
tom@byrnezizzi.com
Childs, Mary P.O.Box 419 662.837.8191 Appointed
President, CEO & COO East Jefferson Street 662.837.8871 06/09
The Peoples Bank of Ripley Ripley, MS 38663 662.837.5262
mchilds@tpbripley.com 662.837.1109
Craig, Mark 2147 Southridge Dr 662.377.6290 Appointed
Physician Tupelo, MS 38801 662.840.7845 06/12
Accent Plastic Surgery 662.231.5016
mcraig@nmbhs.net I
Gillis, Matt 209 Troy St 662.680.1562 Appointed
Corporate Operations Officer-1* VP Tupelo, MS 38802 01/2013
Renasant Bank 901.326.3526
mgillis@renasant.com 662.680.1543
Goad, Gunner 740 North Madison 662.841.8300 Appointed
Regional Director Ext. Affairs-N. MS Tupelo, MS 38804 662.891.2877 8/16
AT&T
dg7616@att.com 662.842.9289
C:\Users\ashley\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\6 TWS1VYX\Board Roster 2017
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AEEEI Ofcvien o1
—positon—————————— —Loffice———
Company
Email:
Goodwin, Julianne 810 Garfield St 662.842.5500
Owner Tupelo, MS 38801
Express Employment Professionals
Julianne.Goodwin@ExpressPros.com 662.842.5971
Graham, Minerva 915 Den Mill Road 662.538.4100 Appointed
New Albany City Schools New Albany, MS 38652 3/13/13
Daycare Owner 662.538.5228
minervagraham@yahoo.com
Gross, Eli 106 Courthouse Square 662.234.4591 Appointed
Commercial Relations Manager Oxford, MS 38655 662.832.0813 7/16
Trustmark National Bank
egross(@trustmark.com 662.234.2344
Guajardo, Rod 2405 Philp Dr 662.678.1579 Appointed
Journal, Inc. Tupelo, MS 38801 01/17
rod@journalinc.com 601.446.2723
662.842.2233

Hankins, Trey 107 Cobblestone Cove Appointed
CFO Ripley, MS 38663 662-587-5117 10/13
Hankins, Inc.
treyhankins@gmail.com
Johnson, Patrice King 904.535.3299 Appointed

' 8/16
patrice.king@yahoo.com
Moll, Ted 1555 Columbine Drive 662.566.6230 Appointed
MTD Products Tupelo, MS 38801 662.680.4650 2011
ted.moll@mtdproducts.com
Myers, Jerad 200 Enterprise Drive 662.234.2248 Appointed
Attorney POB 1155 07/17
Turner Law, PLLC Oxford, MS 38655 662.519.8391
jmyers@billturnerlaw.com 662.236.2784
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Boys & Girls Clubs of North Mississippi

2017-2018 Board Roster

Board Member Mailing Address Contact Info Term of
Position Wphone: Office
Company Ephone:

Email: Mphone:

FAX:
Nance, John 201 West Main 662.678.8340 Appointed
BancorpSouth Insurance Tupelo MS 38804 9/24/2014

john.nance@bxsi.com 662.871.4344
Pirkle, Greg PO Box 1220 662.842.7907 Appointed
Attorney/Partner Tupelo, MS 38802 662.840.7825 06/10
Phelps Dunbar 662.871.1779
greg.pirkle@phelps.com 662.842.3873
Plasencia, Mary Ann 72 South Green Street 662.620.6195 Appointed
Community Liaison Tupelo, MS 38804 5/13
Tupelo Public School District 662.891.8498
maplasencia@tupeloschools.com ‘
Raymer, John 1200 Magnolia Way 662.317.3700 Appointed
General Manager Blue Springs, MS 38828 03/13
Toyota Motor Manufacturing MS Inc. 662 255.4266
john.raymer@tema.toyota.com 662.317.3001
Robertson, Chris POB 110 662.534.2222 Appointed
Chief of Police New Albany 38652 10/29/2014
City of New Albany Police Department 662.266.3500
chris.robertson@napolice.com 662.534.1037
Rollins, Becky 1762 North Parc Circle Appointed
Community Representative Tupelo, MS 38804 713.205.4366 01/2017
becky@beckyrollins.com
Ruff, Ketra POB 789 662.680.2265 Appointed
1* Vice- President Retail Manager Tupelo, MS 38802 2/2016
Tupelo Banking 662.213-9312
BancorpSouth Bank
ketra.ruff@bxs.com
Russell, Charles P. O. Box 587 662.841.8700 Appointed
President, Tupelo/Fulton Tupelo, MS 38802-0587 2011
Trustmark National Bank 601.720.2220

| crussell@trustmark.com 662.841-8727
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Email: Mphone: H

FAX: ‘

Sloan, Shipman PO Box 311 662.610.5588 Appointed “
Landscape Architect Tupelo, MS 38802 4/13
shipmansloan@gmail.com H
Sparkman, Gary POB 789 662.680.2000 Appointed

Sr. Vice-President Commercial Lending | Tupelo MS 38802 10/29/2014 ‘}
BancorpSouth Bank 662.680.2015

| gary.sparkman@bxs.com “
Stroud, Billye Jean 593 Glendale Road 662.317.0405 Appointed I
Asst. VP/Relationship Manager New Albany MS 38652 9/24/2014 |
Discover Financial Services ‘
stroud9297@yahoo.com “
Tate, Amy Strickland 2007 Nancy Drive 662.690.3403 Appointed I
Manager Government Relations Tupelo MS 38804 662.341.1214 10/13

Tennessee Valley Authority I
astate@tva.gov 662.690.3601 |
Thompson, Judith, Ph.D. 306 CR 204 662.915.6786 Appointed I
Assistant Professor Abbeville, MS 38601 662.234.9281 06/12 ;
University of Mississippi 662.832.6652 |
jgthomps@olemiss.edu ‘
jjothouse@aol.com I
Toppin, Bruce 830 South Gloster 662.377. 4229 Appointed I
VP/General Counsel Tupelo, MS 38801 662.213.4043 12/2011 ‘
NMHS I
bit4632@att.net 662.377.3990
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTH MISSISSIPPL, INC.,
A NON-SHARE, NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

ARTICLE L.

NAME AND OFFICES

Section 1.1 Name. The name of the corporation is Boys & Girls Clubs of North
Mississippi, Inc.

Section 1.2 Principal Office. The principal office of the corporation shall be located at
213 West Main Street, Tupelo, Mississippi, which shall also be the corporation’s registered
office in the State of Mississippi.

Section 1.3 Additional Offices. The corporation may also have offices at such other
places, either within or without the State of Mississippi, as the board of directors or the executive
committee may from time to time deem appropriate.

ARTICLE II
PURPOSES

The purposes for which the corporation is formed are exclusively charitable, educational,
and scientific, within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or
the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law); provided
however, the corporation shall not possess or exercise any power or authority either expressly, by
interpretation, or by operation of law, that will prevent it at any time from qualifying and
continuing to qualify as a corporation described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue
Law); nor shall it engage directly or indirectly in any activity which would cause the loss of such
qualification.

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributable to, its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the
corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services
rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein.
No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on or propaganda, or
otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate in, or
intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements), any political campaign on
behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws,
the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a
corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law)
or (b) by a corporation contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute  Page 17 ¢

'SAFEGUARD - DEMENT 61-916!

f 69




24
MINUTE BOOK No. 74, CITY OF OXFORD

——Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the < correspondmg _provision of any future United Sf5g8™0 DEVENTET916
‘ Internal Revenue Law). H

H ARTICLE III f
MEMBERSHIP “

Section3.1 ~Members. Pursuant to Section 175 of the Mississippi Nonprofit
H Corporation Act, the corporation shall have no members. l

1 ARTICLE IV H
“ DIRECTORS

Section 4.1

‘ (@) General Powers. The corporate board of directors shall be the governing I
‘ body of the corporation. The business of the corporation shall be managed by the board of
‘\ directors, which may exercise all powers of the corporation and perform all acts that are not by H

law, by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws required to be exercised or performed by “
“ some other party. |

(b) Number. The number of directors shall not be less than thirty (30) twenty-
1‘ one (21) nor more than sixty (60) forty-five (45) and shall be determined from time to time by I
‘ resolution of the board of directors. A director shall be elected at the annual meeting of the
H directors, shall begin service on January 1% of the next year and shall hold office until his/her
“ respective successor is elected or until his/her death, resignation or removal. Each community |
I advisory board shall appoint two members of their board (selected by the community advisory
“ board) to serve as ex-officio voting members of the corporate board and not be counted in the |
l numbers above. All corporate board members are expected to meet membership expectations as ‘
\ approved by the corporate board of directors. |

I
H (c) Classification and Term. The directors (other than the ex officio directors) ‘
l shall be classified into three (3) classes consisting of an equal number of directors in each class !‘
I (hereinafter referred to, respectively, as Class 1, Class 2 and Class 3). The term of each class of - |
H directors shall be a period of three (3) years. The terms of a class of directors which expire in a ‘
\ given year shall expire as of December 31% of that year. M

H Section 4.2  Nominations. Nominations for persons to serve on the board of directors ‘
I shall be made by the development committee. Nominations may also be made by any director H
‘i by petition, signed by the director and filed with the secretary of the corporation at least ten (10)

I days prior to the annual October meeting of the directors. [

I Section4.3  Vacancies. Any vacancy in the board of directors shall be filled by the H
‘ board of directors upon recommendation of the executive committee for the unexpired term of H
H that director.
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Section4.4  Removal or Resignation: Any director, excluding an ex officio director,
‘may be removed by a majority of the entire board of directors. Any director may resign by
giving written notice to the president or to the secretary. Unless otherwise specified in such
notice, the resignation shall take effect upon delivery to the designated officer. A resignation
need not be accepted in order to become effective.

ARTICLE V.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1  Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the board of directors shall be ‘
held in October of each year at a time and place to be fixed by the board of directors, for the
purpose of receiving reports of officers, committees and the chief professional officer; to elect
members of the board of directors; and to act on any other matters that may properly come
before the annual meeting. Written notice of the annual meeting of directors shall be given to all
directors not less than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting.

Section 5.2  Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the board of directors may be held
at such time and place as may be established by the board of directors or the executive
committee. Notice of such regular meetings shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the
meeting.

Section 5.3  Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board of directors may be
called by the president. Special meetings shall be called by the president or by the secretary on
the written request of a majority of the entire board of directors or a majority of the entire
executive committee. The secretary shall give written notice to each director of special meetings
at least three (3) days before the date of said meeting or telephone notice to each director at least
twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting.

Section 5.4  Quorum and Adjournments. At all meetings of the board of directors,
twenty-five percent (25%) of the directors, excluding ex officio voting members of the board of
directors, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The vote of a majority of the
directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the board of
directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by law, the certificate of
incorporation or these bylaws. If a quorum is not present at a meeting of the board of directors,
the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place, without
notice, other than announcement at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken, until a
quorum shall be present.

Section 5.5  Presiding Officer. The president shall preside at all meetings of the board
of directors. If the president is not present, the president elect shall preside. If the president elect
is not present, then a person appointed by the board of directors shall preside. The secretary of
the corporation shall act as secretary of the meeting. If the secretary is not present, then a person
chosen by the board of directors shall act as secretary.
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————Section-5-6——Action-by-Consent.—Any-action-required-or-permitted-to-be-taken-at-any-
meeting of the board of directors may be taken without a meeting if a written consent to such

action is signed by all members of the board of directors, including ex officio voting members,

and such written consent is filed with the minutes of its proceedings.

Section 5.7  Meetings by Telephone or Similar Communications Equipment. Any
member or members of the board of directors may participate in a meeting of the board of

directors by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of
which all directors participating in the meeting can hear each other and participation in such a
meeting shall constitute presence in person by any such director at such meeting.

ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS

Section 6.1  Designation. The officers shall consist of a president (who shall serve as
an ex officio member of all standing committees), a president elect (who shall serve as an ex
officio member of all standing committees), a vice president of development, a vice president of
support services, a vice president of operations, a secretary and a treasurer, all of whom shall be
elected annually by the board of directors. The board of directors or the executive committee
may create such other offices as are necessary or appropriate from time to time. Vacancies in
offices may be filled by the board of directors upon recommendation of the executive committee.
All officers of the corporation shall exercise the powers and perform the duties that shall from
time to time be determined by the board of directors or by the executive committee.

Section 6.2. Term of. and Removal from, Office. Each officer of the corporation shall
hold office for one year and may not serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in the same
office. Any officer may be removed, with or without cause, at any time by the board of directors
or by the executive committee.

Section 6.3  President. The president shall be the chief (volunteer) officer of the
corporation and, subject to the direction of the board of directors and the executive committee,
shall have general chare of the business, affairs and property of the corporation and general
supervision over its other officers and agents. The president shall appoint the members of all
committees; sign such papers as may be required by his/her office or as may be directed by the
board of directors; make such reports and recommendations to the board of directors at any
regular or special meetings concerning the work and affairs of the corporation, as his/her
judgment may be necessary for their information and guidance; request from the treasurer,
secretary and chief professional officer such reports as in his/her judgment are necessary. In
general, he/she shall perform all duties incident to the office of president and shall see that all
orders and resolutions of the board of directors and of the executive committee are carried into
effect. The president shall preside at all meetings of the directors and the executive committee.

Section 6.4  President Elect. The president elect shall preside at all meetings of the
board of directors where the president cannot preside and shall assume all duties of the president
upon expiration of the president’ s term or upon other such absence, resignation or inability to act
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e monees

in the office of president as shall occur. The president elect shall make such reports and
recommendations to the board of directors and chair other such committees as the president shall
direct and shall assist the president in all of the functions of the office of president. The
president elect shall perform such other duties as may be incidental to the office. |

Section 6.5  Vice President of Development. The vice president of development shall
serve as chairperson of the development committee and shall hold meetings as often as the board
of directors or the executive committee shall direct and perform such other duties as are
incidental to the office. The vice president of development shall make reports and
recommendations to the executive committee and board of directors concerning the work and
affairs of the development committee.

Section 6.6 ~ Vice President of Support Services. The vice president of support services
shall serve as chairperson of the support services committee and shall hold meetings as often as
the board of directors or the executive committee shall direct and perform such other duties as
are incidental to the office. The vice president of support services shall make reports and
recommendations to the executive committee and board of directors concerning the work and
affairs of the support services committee. \

Section 6.7  Vice President of Operations. The vice president of operations shall serve
as chairperson of the operations committee and shall hold meetings as often as the board of
directors or the executive committee shall direct and perform such other duties as are incidental
to the office. The vice president of operations shall make reports and recommendations to the
executive committee and board of directors concerning the work and affairs of the operations
committee.

Section 6.9  Secretary. The secretary shall attend all meetings of the board of directors ‘
and record all votes and the proceedings of the meetings in a minute book kept for that purpose.
The secretary shall perform like duties for the executive committee. The secretary shall give, or
cause to be given, notice of all annual and special meetings of the board of directors and shall
perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the board of directors, the
executive committee or the president. The secretary shall keep an accurate record of attendance
of members and furnish the nominating subcommittee with a list of officers and members of the
board of directors whose terms shall expire at the end of the year. The secretary shall have
custody of the seal of the corporation, and he/she shall have authority to affix it to any instrument
requiring it, and when so affixed, the seal may be attested by his/her signature. The board of
directors or the executive committee may give general authority to any other officer to affix the
seal of the corporation and to attest the affixing thereof by his/her signature.

Section 6.10 Treasurer. The treasurer shall have custody of the corporate funds and
other valuable effects and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in
books belonging to the corporation and shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the
name and to the credit of the corporation in such depositories as may from time to time be ‘
designated by the board of directors or the executive committee. The treasurer shall distribute
the funds of the corporation in accordance with the orders of the board of directors or the
executive committee, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the
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__president, the board of directors and the_ executive committee an_account_of all K78

transactions as treasurer and of the financial condition of the corporation. The treasurer receives
and has custody of all deeds, securities, notes, contracts and other financial papers of the
corporation and place them for safekeeping in a place designated by the board of directors and
under such rules of access as such board of directors shall determine; cause the books of account
of the corporation to be audited at least once annually by a public accountant approved by the
board of directors and cause to be prepared and present at each annual meeting of the directors of
the corporation a comprehensive financial statement including the report of the accounts. The
treasurer shall have authority to affix the seal of the corporation to any document requiring it,
and when so affixed, the seal may be attested by his/her signature.

Section 6.11 Execution of Instruments. The president shall have the authority to
execute on behalf of the corporation such contracts, deeds, leases and other documents and
instruments as may be required in the ordinary conduct of the business of the corporation, and all
such documents shall be executed by the president as directed by the board of directors.

ARTICLE VII.

CHIEF PROFESSIONAL OFFICER

Section 7.1  Appointment of Chief Professional Officer. The board of directors shall
appoint a chief professional officer of the corporation, fix his/her compensation, prescribe his/her
duties and the terms of his/her employment, and supervise and evaluate his/her job duties.

Section 7.2 Duties of Chief Professional Officer. The chief professional officer shall
manage the affairs and direct the work and employees of the corporation, subject to, and in
accordance with, the directions of the board of directors; prepare budgets of expense for the
approval of the finance committee; and be authorized to incur expenses in accordance with the
approved budget, or as directed by the board of directors.

Section 7.3  Attendance at Meetings. The chief professional officer shall attend all
meetings of the board of directors, executive committee and/or standing committees of the
corporation unless otherwise directed by the board of directors or the executive committee.

Section 7.4  Reports of Chief Professional Officer. The chief professional officer shall
from time to time make reports of the work and affairs of the corporation to the president, board
of directors and the executive committee at the regular or special meetings.

ARTICLE VIII.
COMMITTEES
Section 8.1  Executive Commitiece. The executive committee shall consist of the

officers of the corporation, the immediate past president of the corporation and the advisory
board presidents of all community advisory boards of the corporation.
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The executive committee shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority
delegated to it by the board of directors in the management of the business and affairs of the
corporation. The executive committee shall make recommendations of actions to the board of
directors. The executive committee shall not (1) amend the certificate of incorporation, (2) adopt
an agreement of merger or consolidation, (3) sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of
the corporation’s property and assets, (4) dissolve the corporation or revoke a dissolution, or (5)
amend the bylaws of the corporation.

The president shall be the chairman of and preside at meetings of the executive
committee. If the president is not present, the president-elect shall preside. If the President-elect
is not present, then a member of the executive committee chosen by a majority of the members
present shall preside. The secretary of the corporation shall act as secretary at meetings of the
executive committee. If the secretary is not present, then a person chosen by the executive
committee shall act as secretary of the executive committee.

Section 8.2  Development Committee. There shall be a development committee
composed of at least five (5) members of the board of directors. The vice president of
development shall serve as ex-officio voting member of the development committee. The other
members shall be appointed by the president. The vice president of development of each
community advisory board shall serve as an ex-officio voting member of the development
committee.

8.2.a Duties of Development Committee. @ The development committee
coordinates plans for fund raising projects; establish an endowment program; maintain
satisfactory donor records and safeguard funds to ensure donor accountability. The committee
shall develop and carry out a year round public relations program including using Boys & Girls
Clubs of America materials; plan and carry out Boys & Girls Club weekly promotional activities;
promote and publicize programs and special events; supply news items to all media; make
contact with local civic groups; ensure that all public relations efforts and concepts are consistent
with the philosophy of Boys & Girls Clubs of America and to make other such recommendations
to the board and carry out other such functions as the board of directors may direct; The
committee is responsible for board development; including development of a board profile,
promoting board members, planning and implementing annual meetings, and contacting board
members absent from three consecutive board meetings.

8.2.b Presiding Officer. The vice president of development shall be the chairman
of and preside at meetings of the development committee. If the vice president of development
is not present, then a member of the development committee chosen by a majority of the
members present shall preside. A person chosen by the development committee shall act as
secretary of the development committee.

Section 8.3.  Support Services Committee. There shall be a support services committee
composed of at least five (5) members of the board of directors. The vice president of support
services shall be an ex officio voting member of the support services committee. The vice
president of support services of each community advisory board shall serve as an ex-officio
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president.

8.3.a Duties of the Support Services Committee. The support services
committee is responsible for developing the annual budget for corporate board approval;
ensuring that the organization meets all federal, state and local laws requiring financial
accountability; ensuring that the corporation is meeting all federal, state, and local laws; makes
recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning all insurance and legal matters of the
corporation; shall review all administrative and financial matters affecting the organization and
make recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee. The committee
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning all financial affairs of the
corporation.

8.3.b Presiding Officer. The vice president of support services shall be the
chairman of and preside at meetings of the support services committee. If the vice president of
support services is not present, then a member of the support services committee chosen by a
majority of the members present shall preside. A person chosen by the support services
committee shall act as secretary of the support services committee.

Section 8.4.  Operations Committee. There shall be an operations committee composed
of at least five (5) members of the board of directors. The vice president of operations shall be
an ex officio voting member of the operations committee. The other members shall be appointed
by the president. The vice president of operations of each community advisory board shall serve
as an ex-officio voting member of the operations committee.

8.4.a Duties of the Operations Committee. The operations committee shall
develop major program areas of the year in conjunction with the staff of the corporation;
evaluate the programs with the staff of the corporation to make sure that the programming is
consistent with organizational goals; review the costs of programs and activities; recommend
new program areas; recommend club hours of operation; inspect the building and grounds and
develop a schedule for needed improvements and maintenance; develop a schedule for service,
replacement and repair of equipment at the clubs and assist in obtaining volunteers, materials and
supplies; make recommendations for new program operations within the corporate service area.

8.4.b Presiding Officer. The vice president of operations shall chair and preside
at meetings of the operations committee. If the vice president of operations is not present, then a
member of the operations committee chosen by a majority of the members present shall preside.
A person chosen by the operations committee shall act as secretary of the operations committee.

Section 8.58.5.8.5.  Section 8.7  Other Committees. The board of directors, the
executive committee or the president, with the approval of the board of directors, shall appoint
other committees as may be appropriate from time to time. All such committees shall report to
the board of directors or the executive committee.

ARTICLE IX.
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MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

Section 9.1  Procedure, Action and Meetings. Except as otherwise provided in these
bylaws, each committee shall establish its own rules of procedure and shall meet at such time i
and place as shall be established by the committee. Any committee which is appointed by the
board of directors shall act in an advisory capacity to the board of directors and shall not take
action on behalf of the corporation unless the resolution 'creating the committee or bylaws
specifically authorizes such committee to act on behalf of the corporation. Each committee shall
keep minutes of its meetings.

Section 9.2 Quorum. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the members of any committee,
including ex officio voting members, shall constitute a quorum. The act of a majority of the |
members present at any meeting of any committee except the executive committee, at which '
there is a quorum, shall be the act of such committee. The affirmative vote of a majority of the
members of the entire executive committee shall be necessary for the taking of any action by the
executive committee.

Section 9.3  Action by Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any
meeting of any committee may be taken without a meeting if a written consent to such action is
signed by all members of the committee, including ex officio voting members of such
committee, and such written consent is filed with the minutes of its proceedings.

Section 9.4  Meetings by Telephone or Similar Communications Equipment. Any
member or members of any committee may participate in a meeting of such committee by means
of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons
participating in such meeting can hear each other, and participation in such a meeting shall
constitute presence in person by any such committee member at such meeting.

ARTICLE X.

REGIONAL CLUBS

The corporation may from time to time open a Boys & Girls Club in a community that is
separate and apart from the clubs in the vicinity of the corporation’s corporate offices. In an I
effort to promote community support and to help ensure the success of the club, the corporation l
may establish a community advisory board with local officers for the oversight, programs
assessment, resource development, and marketing of the said club, referred to in these bylaws as
a“clubhouse.”

Section 10.1 Community Advisory Boards. If the corporate board of directors approves
the establishment of a clubhouse in a specific community, then each community may establish a
community advisory board. The initial community advisory board for each clubhouse shall be
approved by the board of directors of the corporation upon the recommendation of individuals
from the community in which the clubhouse is located.
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overswht to the clubhouse. The community advisory board shall make recommendations to the

corporate board of directors and the executive committee regarding all business related to that
specific community clubhouse.

10.1.b Number. The number of directors on an advisory board shall be not less
than twenty (20) fifteen (15) nor more than forty-five (45) thirty (30) and shall be determined
from time to time, by resolution of the community advisory board. Directors of the community
advisory board shall be elected at the annual meeting of the community advisory board, shall
begin service beginning at the beginning of the fiscal year and shall hold office until their
respective successors are elected or until death, resignation or removal.

10.1.c Classification and Term. The directors (other than the ex officio directors)
shall be classified into three (3) classes consisting of an equal number of directors in each class
(hereinafter referred to, respectively, as Class 1, Class 2 and Class 3). The term of each class of
directors shall be a period of three (3) years. The terms of a class of directors which expire in a
given year shall expire at the end of the fiscal year of that year.

10.1.d Removal or Resignation. Any director on the community advisory board
may be removed by a majority of the entire community advisory board. Any community
advisory board member may resign by giving written notice to the advisory board president or to
the advisory board secretary. Unless otherwise specified in such notice, the resignation shall

take effect upon delivery to the designated officer. A resignation need not be accepted in order
to become effective.

10.1.e Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the community advisory board
shall be held in October of each year at a time and place to be fixed by the community advisory
board for the purpose of receiving reports of advisory board officers and the advisory board
committees; to elect members of the community advisory board; and to act on any other matters
that may properly come before the annual meeting. Written notice of the annual meeting of
community advisory board shall be given to all advisory board members not less than thirty (30)
days prior to the meeting.

10.1.f Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the community advisory boards
may be held at such time and place as may be established by the community advisory board or
the advisory board executive committee. Notice of such regular meetings shall be given at least
thirty (30) days prior to the meeting.

10.1.g Special Meetings. Special meetings of the community advisory board
may be called by the community advisory board president. Special meetings shall be called by
the advisory board president or by the advisory board secretary on the written request of a
majority of the entire community advisory board or a majority of the entire community advisory
board executive committee. The advisory board secretary shall give written notice to each
advisory board member of special meetings at least three (3) days before the date of said meeting
or telephone notice to each director at least twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting.
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10.1.h Quorum and Adjournments. At all meetings of the community advisory
board, twenty-five percent (25%) of the community advisory board members shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. The vote of a majority of the advisory board directors
present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the advisory board. If a
quorum is not present at a meeting of the community advisory board, the advisory board
directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place, without
notice, other than announcement at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken, until a
quorum shall be present.

10.1.1 Presiding Officer. The advisory board president shall preside at all |
meetings of the community advisory board. If the advisory board president is not present, the
advisory board president elect shall preside. If the advisory board president elect is not present,
then a person appointed by the advisory board shall preside. The advisory board secretary of the
corporation shall act as secretary of the meeting. If the advisory board secretary is not present,
then a person chosen by the advisory board shall act as secretary.

10.1.j Action by Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any
meeting of the community advisory board may be taken without a meeting if a written consent to
such action is signed by all members of the advisory board and such written consent is filed with ‘
the minutes of its proceedings.

10.1.k Meetings by Telephone or Similar Communications Equipment. Any
member or members of the advisory board may participate in a meeting of the advisory board by
means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all
advisory board directors participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in
such a meeting shall constitute presence in person by any such director at such meeting.

Section 10.2  Advisory Board Officers. Each community advisory board shall elect a
president, a president-elect, a vice president for development, a vice president for support
services, a vice president for operations, a secretary/treasurer all of whom shall be elected by the
community advisory board. Vacancies in offices may be filled by the community advisory
board. All advisory board officers of the corporation shall exercise the powers and perform the
duties that shall from time to time be determined by the community advisory board and approved
by the corporate board of directors.

Section 10.3 Terms of Office. Each officer of the community advisory board shall hold }
office for one year and may not serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in the same office. ‘
Any officer may be removed, with or without cause, at any time by the board of directors or by
the executive committee.

10.3.a President. The advisory board president shall be the chief volunteer
officer of the advisory board club and, shall have general oversight of the business, affairs and
property of the local club and general supervision over its other officers and agents. The
president shall appoint the members of all advisory board committees; make such reports and
recommendation to the board of directors or the advisory board at any regular or special
meetings concerning the work and affairs of the advisory board club as his/her judgment may be
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—necessary-for-their-information-and-guidance; request-from-the-advisory-board-secretary/treasurer
such reports as in his/her judgment are necessary. In general, he/she shall perform all duties
incident to the office of president and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the board of
directors and of the executive committee are carried into effect with respect to the advisory board
club. The president shall preside at all meetings of the advisory board.

10.3.b President Elect. The advisory board president elect shall preside at all
meetings of the advisory board where the advisory board president cannot preside and shall
assume all duties of the advisory board president upon expiration of the advisory board
president’s term or upon other such absence, resignation or inability to act in the office of
president as shall occur. The advisory board president elect shall make such reports and
recommendations to the advisory board and the board of directors and chairs other such
committees as the advisory board president shall direct and shall assist the advisory board
president in all of the functions of the office of president. The advisory board president-elect
shall perform such other duties as may be incidental to the office.

10.3.c Vice President of Development. The advisory board vice president of
development shall serve as chairperson of the advisory board development committee and shall
hold meetings as often as the advisory board shall direct and perform such other duties as are
incidental to the office of vice president of development for the advisory board club. The
advisory board vice president of development shall make reports and recommendations to the
advisory board concerning the work and affairs of the advisory board development committee.

10.3.d Vice President of Support Services. The advisory board vice president of
Support Services shall serve as chairperson of the advisory board support services committee and
shall hold meetings as often as the advisory board shall direct and perform such other duties as
are incidental to the office of vice president of support services for the advisory board club. The
advisory board vice president of support services shall make reports and recommendations to the

advisory board concerning the work and affairs of the advisory board support services
committee.

10.3.e Vice President of Operations. The advisory board vice president of
operations shall serve as chairperson of the advisory board operations committee and shall hold
meetings as often as the advisory board shall direct and perform such other duties as are
incidental to the office of vice president of operations of the advisory board club. The advisory
board vice president of operations shall make reports and recommendations to the community
advisory board concerning the work and affairs of the advisory board operations committee.

10.3.10.3.g  Secretary/Treasurer. The advisory board secretary/treasurer shall
attend all meetings of the advisory board and record all votes and the proceedings of the
meetings in a minute book kept for that purpose. The advisory board secretary/treasurer shall
give, or cause io be given, notice of all annual and special meetings of the advisory board, and
shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the advisory board of
the advisory board president. The advisory board secretary shall keep an accurate record of
attendance of members and shall provide a list of all members of the advisory board and a list of
the advisory board officers to the secretary of the corporation. The secretary/treasurer shall have
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oversight of the corporate funds related to the advisory board club and other valuable effects and
shall report on receipts and disbursements in books related to the advisory board club.

10.3.

Section 10.4 Advisory Board Committees. Each advisory board club shall have an
executive committee, a development committee, a support services committee, an operations
committee, and such other committees as the advisory board may determine to be appropriate
from time to time. All such committees shall report to the advisory board. Each committee shall
establish its own rules of procedure and shall meet at such time and place as shall be established
by the committee. Each committee shall keep minutes of its meetings. Twenty-five (25%) of the
members of any committee shall constitute a quorum. The act of a majority of the members
present at any meeting of any committee at which there is a quorum shall be the act of such
committee.

10.4.a. Executive Committee. The executive committee shall consist of the
advisory board officers of the advisory board and the immediate past president of the advisory
board.

(i) Powers of Executive Committee. The executive committee shall have and may
exercise all the powers and authority delegated to it by the corporate board of directors in the
oversight of the business and affairs of the club. The executive committee shall make
recommendations of actions to the advisory board and to the corporate board of directors and the
executive committee.

(i1) Presiding Officer. The advisory board president shall be the chairman of
and preside at meetings of the advisory board executive committee. If the advisory board
president is not present, the advisory board president elect shall preside. If the advisory board
president elect is not present, then a member of the advisory board executive committee chosen
by a majority of the members present shall preside. The advisory board secretary shall act as
secretary at meetings of the advisory board executive committee. If the advisory board secretary
is not present, then a person chosen by the advisory board executive committee shall act as
secretary of the advisory board executive committee.

10.4.b Development Committee. There shall be an advisory board development
committee the number of members of which shall be set by the advisory board annually. The
advisory board vice president of development shall be an ex officio voting member of the
advisory board development committee. The other members shall be appointed by the advisory
board president.

@) Duties of Development Committee. The committee coordinates plans for
fund raising projects; assists in establishing an endowment program; safeguard funds to ensure
donor accountability. The committee makes recommendations to the Board of Directors
concerning all financial affairs of the regional club. The committee shall develop and carry out a
year round public relations program including using Boys & Girls Clubs of America materials;
plan and carry out Boys & Girls Club weekly promotional activities; promote and publicize
programs and special events; supply news items to all media; make contact with local civic
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___groups; ensure that all public relations efforts and concepts-are consistent-with the philosophi‘t
Boys & Girls Clubs of North Mississippi.

i

(iii)  Presiding Officer. The advisory board vice president of development shall
be the chairman of and preside at meetings of the advisory board development committee. If the
advisory board vice president of development is not present, then a member of the.advisory
board development committee chosen by a majority of the members present shall preside. A

person chosen by the advisory board development committee shall act as secretary of the
advisory board development committee.

10.4.c Support Services Committee. There shall be an advisory board support
services committee the number of members of which shall be set by the advisory board annually.
The advisory board vice president of support services shall be an ex officio voting member of the

advisory board support services committee. The other members shall be appointed by the
advisory board president.

@) Duties of the Advisory Board Support Services Committee. The advisory
board support services committee shall review all administrative and financial matters affecting
the regional club and make recommendations to the Board of Directors and the Executive
Committee. The committee develops the annual budget for the clubhouse and presents this
budget to the corporate finance committee for approval; the committee also reviews the actions
and progress of the clubhouse to meet the goals and objective of its strategic plan; make other
such recommendations tc the advisory board and carry out other such functions as the
community advisory board directs.

(ii) Presiding Officer. The advisory board vice president of support services
shall be the chairman of and preside at meetings of the advisory board support services
committee. If the advisory board vice president of marketing and development is not present,
then a member of the advisory board support services chosen by a majority of the members
present shall preside. A person chosen by the advisory board support services shall act as
secretary of the advisory board support services.

10.4.d Operations Committee. There shall be an advisory board operations
committee the number of members of which shall be set by the advisory board annually. The
advisory board vice president of operations shall be an ex officio voting member of the
operations committee. The other members shall be appointed by the advisory board president.

(i) Duties of the Advisory Board Operations Committee. The advisory board
operations committee shall develop major program areas of the year for the advisory board club
in conjunction with the staff of the advisory board club and the operations committee of the
corporation; evaluate the programs with the staff of the advisory board club to make sure that the
programming is consistent with organizational goals; review the costs of programs and activities
of the advisory board club; recommend new program areas; recommend hours of operation for
the advisory board club; inspect the building and grounds and develop a schedule for needed
improvements and maintenance; develop a schedule for service, replacement and repair of
equipment at the advisory board club and assist in obtaining volunteers, materials and supplies.

D - DEMENT 61-9165
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(i1) Presiding Officer. The advisory board vice president of operations shall
be the chairman of and preside at meetings of the advisory board operations committee. If the
advisory board vice president of operations is not present, then a member of the advisory board
operations committee chosen by a majority of the members present shall preside. A person
chosen by the operations committee shall act as secretary of the advisory board operations
committee.

10.4.e 10.4.f
ARTICLE XI

LEADERSHIP (HONORARY) BOARD

The corporation may establish an “Honorary Board” to act in an advisory capacity and to
assist in obtaining and maintaining a favorable image in the areas in which the corporation
maintains clubs. The Leadership Board will counsel with the board of directors upon matters of
import to the corporation when requested by the president.

Section 11.1  Function of Leadership Board. The Leadership Board will assist the board
of directors in achieving the goals and objectives of the corporation.

(a) Planning. The Leadership Board shall review and advise the corporation
with respect to its mission/philosophy and shall review and evaluate the corporation’s programs
and operations.

(b) Financial. The Leadership Board shall oversee the financial accountability
of the corporation; assist and advise in the on-going process of budget development; assist and
advisein raising funds and/or ensuring that adequate funds are raised to support the corporation’s
policies and programs, and provide counsel in the maintenance of properties or investments.

© Community Relations. The Leadership Board shall advise the board of
directors regarding the corporation’s effectiveness in addressing community needs; assist in
projecting the best positive image to the public of the corporation’s services and achievements,
and in effect acting as emissaries of the corporation within the community.

(d) Board Development. The Leadership Board shall assist the board of
directors in seeking the best qualified replacements for those directors who are unable to
continue service on the board of directors and to integrate new directors in a suitable manner.

(e) Recognition. The Leadership Board shall assist the board of directors in
reviewing the accomplishments in youth service throughout the communities in which the
corporation has clubs and recognizing both individual and group achievements that advance the
goals and objectives of the corporation.

Section 11.2 Composition. The Leadership Board shall be composed of not more than
fifteen (15) people, as set by the board of directors, who have demonstrated leadership in the
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reputation among the leaders and motivators of said areas. Members shall be elected by the
board of directors of the corporation.

Section 11.3  Officers. The Leadership Board shall be authorized to elect a chairman
and such other officers as it deems appropriate.

Section 11.4 Liability. Members of the Leadership Board are to be held harmless and
are indemnified against any liability arising out of the operation of the corporation.

Section 11.5 Term of Membership. Membership on the Leadership Board shall be for a
three (3) year term from the date of appointment to the board. Individuals may be reelected to
Leadership Board without regard to the number of terms previously served. A member of the
Leadership Board may resign at any time.

ARTICLE XII

TRANSACTIONS WITH INTERESTED PARTIES

The corporation shall follow the policy set forth in this his/her Article to protect the
interest of the corporation when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement
that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the corporation. This his/her
policy is intended to supplement, but not replace, any state laws governing conflicts of interest
applicable to nonprofit and charitable corporations.

Section 12.1 Definitions.

(a) Interested Person. Any director, principal officer or member of a
committee with board delegated powers or any other individual in a position to exercise
substantial influence over the affairs of the corporation, who has a direct or indirect financial
interest, as defined below, is an interested person.

(b) Financial Interest. A person has a financial interest if the person has,
directly or indirectly, through business, investment or family:

(i) an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the
corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or

(ii) a compensation arrangement with the corporation or with any entity or
individual with which the corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or

(c) a potential ownership or investment in, or compensation arrangement
with, any entity or individual with which the corporation is negotiating a transaction or
arrangement.
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Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors that are
substantial in nature.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. A person who has a financial interest
may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate board or committee decides that a conflict
of interest exists.

Section 12.2 Procedures.

() Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflicts of
interest, an interested person must disclose the existence and nature of his/her or her financial
interest and must be given the opportunity to disclose any material facts to the directors and
members of committees with board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or
arrangement.

financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussions with the interested person, he or
she shall leave the board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is
discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict
of interest exists.

(b) Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the H
I
\

(©) Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest.

(i) An interested person may make a presentation at the board or committee ?
meeting, but after such presentation, he or she shall leave the meeting during the
discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement that result in the
conflict of interest.

(i) The president of the corporation or chairperson of the committee shall, if
appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

(iii) After exercising due diligence, the board or committee shall determine
whether the corporation can obtain a more advantageous transaction or
arrangement with reasonable efforts from a person or entity that would not give
rise to a conflict of interest.

(iv) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably
attainable under circumstances that would not give rise to a conflict of interest,
the board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested
directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the corporation’s best
interest and for its own benefit and whether the transaction is fair and reasonable
to the corporation and shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the
transaction or arrangement in conformity with such determination.

3) Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.
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(a) If the board or committee has reasonable cause to believe that a member has
failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis
for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.

(b) If, after hearing the response of the member and making such further
investigation as may be warranted in the circumstances, the board or committee determines that
the member has in fact failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take
appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Section 12.3 Records of Proceedings. The minutes of the board and all
committees with board-delegated powers shall contain:

(a) the names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a
financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the
financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present and the
board’s or committee’ s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.

(b) the names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes
relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any

alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in
connection therewith.

Section 12.4 Compensation Committees. A voting member of any committee
whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or
indirectly, from the corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to
that member’s compensation.

Section 12.5 Annual Statements. Each director, principal officer and member of

a committee with board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms that such
person:

(a) hasreceived a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,
(b) has read and understands the policy,

(c) has agreed to comply with the policy, and understands that the
corporation is a charitable organization and that in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it
must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Section 12.6 Periodic Reviews. To ensure that the corporation operates in a
manner consistent with its charitable purposes and that it does not engage in activities that could
jeopardize its status as an organization exempt from federal income tax, periodic reviews shall be
conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

(1) Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable
and are the results of arm’s-length bargaining.
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2) Whether acquisitions of property result in inurnment or
impermissible private benefit.

3) Whether partnership and joint venture arrangements and
arrangements with management service organizations conform to written policies, are properly
recorded, reflect reasonable payments for goods and services, further the corporation’s charitable
purposes and do not result in inurnment or impermissible private benefit.

@) Whether agreements with employees further the corporation’s
charitable purposes and do not result in inurnment or impermissible private benefit.

Section 12.7 Use of Outside Experts. In conducting the periodic reviews
provided for above, the corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts
are used, their use shall not relieve the board of its responsibility for ensuring that periodic
reviews are conducted.

ARTICLE XIII

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS. DIRECTORS.
EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS

Section 13.1  General. The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who
was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed
action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an
action by or on behalf of the corporation) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director,
officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the
corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, finds
(including, but not limited to, excise taxes) and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good
faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or on opposed to the best interests of the
corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to
believe his/her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by
judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall
not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner
which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and,
with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his/her
conduct was unlawful.

Section 13.2  Suits by or on Behalf of a Corporation. The corporation shall have power
to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or on behalf of the corporation to procure a
judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent
of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise
against expenses (including attorney’s fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in
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_ connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if he acted.in good faith antiHi-470 DVENT 6165

manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and
except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which
such person still have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent
that a court of competent jurisdiction or the court in which such action or suit was brought shall
determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the
circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such
expenses which such court shall deem proper.

Section 13.3 Mandatory Indemnification. To the extent that a director, officer, employee
or agent of a corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action,
suite or proceeding referred to in Sections 13.1 and 13.2, or in defense of any claim, issue or
mater therein, he shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith.

Section 13.4 Permissible Indemnification. Any indemnification under Sections 13.1
and 13.2 (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the corporation only as authorized in the
specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee or
agent is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of conduct set
forth in Sections 13.1 and 13.2. Such determination shall be made (1) by majority vote of the
directors on the executive committee who are not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, even
though less than a quorum, or (2) by a majority vote of the directors who are not parties to such
action, suit or proceeding, even though less than a quorum, or (3) if there are no such directors,
or if such directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (4) by the
members.

Section 13.5 Advances of Expenses. Expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by
an officer or director in defending any civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suite
or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action,
suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to
repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he is not entitled to be indemnified by
the corporation as authorized in this article. Such expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred
by other employees and agents may be so paid upon such terms and conditions, if any, as the
board of directors or executive committee deems appropriate. The board of directors (or the
executive committee) shall not unreasonably refuse to pay such expenses in advance of the final
disposition of an action involving directors or officers of the corporation.

Section 13.6 Non-Exclusive.  The indemnification and advancement of expense
provided by, or granted pursuant to, the other sections of this article shall not be deemed
exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses
may be entitled under any agreement, vote of disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to
action in his/her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office.

Section 13.7 Insurance. The corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain
insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the
corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee
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or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any
liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his/her
status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify him against
such liability under the provisions of this section.

Section 13.8 Corporate Combinations. For purposes of this article, references to “the
corporation” shall include, in addition to Boys & Girls Clubs of North Mississippi, Inc., the
resulting corporation, any constituent corporation (including any .constituent of a constituent)
absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its separate existence had continued, would have
had power and authority to indemnify its directors, officers and employees or agents, so that any
person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or is
or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall stand in
the same position under the provisions of this article with respect to the resulting or surviving
corporation as he would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate
existence had continued.

Section 13.9 Other Enterprises. For purposes of this article, references to “other
enterprises” shall include employee benefit plans; references to “fines” shall include any excise
taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and references to “serving at
the request of the corporation” shall include any service as a director, officer, employee or agent
of the corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer,
employee or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries; and
a person who acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in the interest of
the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a
manner “not opposed to the best interests of the corporation” as referred to in this article.

Section 13.10 Continuation of Indemnification. The indemnification and advancement
of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this article shall, unless otherwise provided
when authorized or ratified, continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer,
employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such
a person.

Section 13.11 Captions. The captions or headings at the beginning of each section
hereof are for convenience only and shall not be construed to have any effect or meaning with
respect to the content of such sections.

ARTICLE XIV
NOTICES

Section 14.1 Manner of Delivery. Whenever notice is required to be given to the
membership, it shall be given in writing mailed to the member at his/her address as it appears on
the books of the corporation, unless otherwise specifically provided by law or these bylaws.
Notice to a director may be given in writing mailed to the director at his/her address as it appears
on the books of the corporation, unless other specifically provided by law or these bylaws.
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personally delivering written notice to the director, by telephoning notice to the director or by
faxing such notice to the director at his/her address as it appears on the records of the
corporation. Notices given by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when received.

Section 14.2 Waiver. Whenever any notice is required to be given for any reason, a
written waiver thereof signed by the person entitled to said notice, whether before or after the
time stated therein, shall be deemed to be equivalent to such notice. A member who attends a
meeting of the membership without protesting at the commencement of the meeting the lack of
notice thereof, or any director who attends a meeting of the board of directors or any committee
without protesting at the commencement of the meeting the lack of notice, shall be conclusively
deemed to have waived notice of such meeting.

ARTICLE XV

DISSOLUTION

Upon the dissolution of the corporation, the board of directors shall, after paying or
making provisien for the payment of all of the liabilities of the corporation, dispose of all the
assets of the corporation exclusively for the purposes of the corporation in such a manner, or to
such organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable,
educational, religious or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization
or organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), as the board of
directors shall determine. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the
chancery court of the county in which the principal office of the corporation is then located,
exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said court shall
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE XVI
FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January and end on the
last day of December each year.
ARTICLE XVII
SEAL
The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the work
£ M ‘11
ARTICLE XVIII

GOVERNING LAW
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Boys & Girls Clubs of North Mississippi, Inc. is a corporation established under the laws l
of the State of Mississippi. These bylaws are adopted pursuant to the Mississippi Nonprofit
Corporation Act and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi.

|
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ARTICLES XIX

AMENDMENTS

The board of directors shall have authority to alter, amend or repeal these bylaws and to
adopt new bylaws at any regular meeting of the directors or at any special meeting of the
director, the notice of which states that one of the purposes of the meeting is the amendment of
the bylaws; provided however, the board of directors cannot amend any provision in a manner

which would adversely affect the corporation’ s exception under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

These Amended and Restated Bylaws are adopted by majority vote of the entire board of

directors of Boys & Girls Clubs of North Mississippi, Inc. on this, the 26" day of September .
2006.

Zdl Lay
ZELL LONG, PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

JaeTala
JANE TAYLOR, SECRETARY
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BOYS& GIRLSCLUBSOF
NORTH MS2017-2018 ACCOUNT

Oxford
REVENUE
Dongtions 57,765
Parent Club Contributions 3,695
Grants 24,160
Fundraiser 10,828
Specid Events 2104
United Way 36,400
TANF \ 31,222
or 10,000
Summer Fees 17,851
After School Activity Fees 6,771
Transportation Fees -
Interest Income 162
Endowment Income 16,000
Store Ses -
Miscellaneous 1,167
REVENUE TOTALS 238,125
EXPENDITURES
Payroll 175,823
Employee Benefits 13,078
Payroll Taxes 16,252
Professiond Services 4,440
Computer Services 1,092
Store Supplies -
Program Supplies 5,148
Office Supplies 2613
Telephone 5911
Gas 1,952
\Weter 1,112
Electricity 12,733
Postage 1,109
Rent 1,680
Property Maintenance 5,000
Equipment Rentd & Maint 1,488
Travel 740
Gas & Oil 3,110
Vehicde Mantenance 2,331
Meeting Expenses 460
MSAIl S&ff Conference 980
Nationd Conference 439
Southeast Conference 788
Area Council Conference 243
Youth Development 741
Saff Development 435
Board Meetings 700
I nsurance 9231
Dues 4,387
Marketing Expense 1,214
Fundraising Expenses 6,612
Bank Charges 302
Background Checks 803
Miscellaneous Expenses 431
EXPENDITURESTOTALS 283,378
DIFFERENCE (45,253)
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L.Q.C.LAMAR FOUNDATION

LQCLAMAR.ORG

The L.Q.C. Lamar Foundation, a non-profit educational special project of CREATE
Foundation, respectfully requests a $20,000 donation to serve as match for a

$20,000 grant from the Phil Hardin Foundation. All funds will be used to support
educational programming benefiting the L.Q.C. Lamar House and Oxford tourism.

We successfully used last year’s contribution to match a $20,000 grant from the Phil
Hardin Foundation and an additional $5,000 grant from the Mississippi Hills
National Heritage Area, resulting in a total investment of $45,000 for educational

programming supporting and promoting the L.Q.C. Lamar House and benefiting
Oxford tourism.

In only our first year partnering with the City of Oxford’s Historic Properties
Commission to support and promote the L.Q.C. Lamar House, we are very pleased
with the results and see much promise for the future.

*  We have already met our initial goal of doubling the number of visitors to the
Lamar House with more than two months remaining in this 12-month cycle,
currently at 104% growth.

* Visitor growth rate is projected to reach approximately 140% by end of this
12-month cycle on October 1.

*  We provided staffing to greatly expand the Lamar House's hours of operation
from only three hours (1-4 pm) over weekends (Friday-Sunday) to a full-
time presence for visitors throughout the week (Tuesday-Thursday) from 10
am to 4 pm. We found visitor attendance evenly distributed between
weekdays and weekends.

*  Qur proactive outreach program aimed at media and opinion leaders who
have never visited Lamar House is producing results. Some of our visitors
include:

= One of the nation’s leading Civil War historians, past president of
University of Richmond, and host of nationally syndicated radio
program, Backstory with the American History Guys (Sundays on MS
Public Broadcasting).

PO BOX 107, OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI 38655 | 662-259-0085
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Director of Mississippi’s Bicentennial and cultural heritage tourism
trails for Visit Mississippi and host of the tourism radio program Next
Stop, Mississippi! (Fridays on MS Public Broadcasting}.

Senior aides to U.S. Senator Thad Cochran.

Members of the Board of Trustees of the MS Department of Archives &
History.

Director of the Mississippi Hills National Heritage Area.

Our promotional efforts have resulted in coverage on radio programs and
feature articles in print and social media. Some of them include:

= A feature article in Today in Mississippi, the statewide magazine of the
electric power associations with a circulation of 450,000 households.

Mississippi Arts Hour hosted by Malcolm White on MS Public
Broadcasting.

Speaking engagements throughout the state, such as the Meridian
Rotary Club.

In the coming year we will expand these successful efforts while organizing the first
of its kind conference on 1..Q.C. Lamar, to be held in Oxford modeled on the William
Faulkner Conference, and begin organizing bus tours from throughout the state to
visit the Lamar House and other sites in Oxford.

We will also continue our ongoing work on a new biography of Lamar, the first in
almost 50 years, video documentary on Lamar, and a summer institute for social
studies teachers based in Oxford.
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Board of Directors
2017-2018

MINUTE BOOK No. 74, CITY OF OXFORD
——  AlanAlexander (rc=clccted 2016)  President ~attorney ) T l
125 Thacker Loop |
Oxford, MS 38655 ‘
I 662-832-2526 (cell) |
ex 0.com ‘
\

|

Walt Davis -Treasurer attorney ‘
324 Jackson Ave East, Suite A }
Oxford, MS 38655 ‘
662-281-0001 (work) 1
662-801-3812 (cell)* ‘
662-236-4325 (home) ‘
" waltdavis@dunbardavis.com I

Jeff Dennis (elected 2014) Vice President doctor \
551 Azalea Dr

‘ Oxford, MS 38655-7900

| Dorothy Laurenzo (elected 2015)  Secretary community volunteer
1 210 S 5th St

l Oxford, MS 38655-3854 ’
dorothylaurenzo@bellsouth.net

J
Camille Mitchell (Kevin) - Past President Officc Manager ‘
\ Elected 2013

H 509 Thrasher Pt.,

. Oxford MS 38655 ;
; 662-801-6024 |
| kevinandcamille@gmail.com “

J

‘ Mac Nichols (Elected 2013) Doctor
| 1582 Buchanan Ave

i Oxford, MS 38655-4418

H macnichols1@gmail.com

! Bradley Rayner (Jenny) Communication/Tech Owner
‘ Elected 2013

! 1090 Augusta Drive
( Oxford, MS 38655
H 662-715-9200

I bradleyrayner@gmail.com
!4

1612 Pierce Avenue Ext ‘
I Oxford, MS 38655-4458 ‘

|
Griffin Tanner (elected 2015) Restaurant Owner ‘
|

griffin.tanner@gmail.com

‘ * preferred contact number H
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Board of Directors

=
I

Yoknapatawpha Arts Council
2017-2018 r

Mary Douglas Vance (elected 2015) Music teacher
2105 Old Taylor Road
Oxford, MS 38655

Dave Woolworth* -Vice President — facilities Acoustician
Oxford Acoustics

356 CR 102

Oxford, MS 38655

662-513-0065 (work)

662 701 7534 (cell)*

662-234-1098 (home)

kudzudav@gmail.com

Ginny Abraham (elected 2016)
200 Stone Rd

Oxford, MS 38655-2022
601-831-1463

Dwaync Ingraham (elected 2016) Owner Sinfully Southern \
156 county road 376

Water Valley, MS, 38965 i

(662) 701-0306 I
dwayne.ingraham32@gmail.com

Lauren Cleary (elected 2016) Realtor
(205) 492-1943
mslaurenwest@gmail.com

Wayne Andrews Executive Director, YAC \‘
P.O. Box 544 , |
Oxford, MS 38655 w
662-236-6429

vacdircctor@gmail.com

* preferred contact number
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YOKNAPATAWPHA ARTS COUNCIL INC.

Compliled Financial Statements
June 30, 2016 and 2015

WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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YOKNAPATAWPHA ARTS COUNCIL INC.

|
|
CONTENTS
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT 1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘
Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets - Tax Basis 4

Statements of Support, Revenues, and Expenses and Changes in

Unrestricted Net Assets - Tax Basis 5
Statements of Support, Revenues, and Expenses and Changes in
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Tax Basis 6
Notes to Financial Statements 7 ‘

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedules of Functional Expenses - Tax Basis 11

WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC ‘
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS I

Confiential Information - or Board Use Only - Uo not Redistnbute  Page 4/ b‘f 54




MINUTE BOOK No. 74, CITY OF OXFORD

SAFEGUARD - DEMENT 61-9165

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS
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Jnmes L. Stafford, CPA Thomax J, Browdlor, CPA
TMarry W. Stevens, CPA Stephen 1, Finke, CPA ‘
o S. Keith Winfield, CPA John N, Russell, CPA
WATKINS, WARD and STAFFORD  §Xet:Winfiid, CPA  Johu N. Rusul, CPA_
Professional Limited Liability Company Michasel W. MeCally, CPA Anita L Goodrum, CPA. |
2 Mort Strond, CPA Ricky D, Allen, CPA
Certified Public Accountants R. Steve Sinclair, CPA Jason D. Brooks, CPA ‘
Marshn L. McDoanld, CPA Robert ., Cordle, Jr., CPA |
Wanda S. Mollcy, CPA Perry C. Rackley, Jr., CPA
Robin Y. McCarmick, CPA/PFS Jerry 1, Gammel, CPA
J, Randy Scrivaer, CPA Micbinel C. Kuox, CPA “
Kimberly S. Caskey, CPA Qifford P. Stewart, CPA ||

Sosan M. Lummus, CPA |

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT Y

Board of Directors 1
Yoknapatawpha Arts Council Inc. ‘l
Oxford, Mississippi ‘

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Yoknapatawpha Arts Council Inc. (a ‘
nonprofit organization), which comprise the Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets — Tax Basis as of I
June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related Statements of Support, Revenues, and Expenses and Changes in ‘
Unrestricted Net Assets — Tax Basis and the Statements of Support, Revenues, and Expenses and Changes in
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Tax Basis for the years then ended, and the related notes to financial
statements in accordance with the tax basis of accounting, and for determining that the tax basis of accounting is

an acceptable financial reporting framework. We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance with
Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review ‘
Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the financial statements nor were we required to
perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management.
Accordingly we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial ‘
statements.

We draw attention to Note 1(B) of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial \
statements are prepared in accordance with the tax basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than *
accounting principles generally accepted in'the United States of America.

The supplementary information included in the Schedules of Functional Expenses — Tax Basis is presented for ”
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information is the 1
representation of management. The information was subject to our compilation engagement, however, we have M
not audited or reviewed the supplementary information and accordingly, do not express an opinion, nor provide

any form of assurance on such supplementary information.

Oxford, Mississippi

May 12, 2017 wa-Hﬁ.m k)dﬂ' ad &h“dd, Pue

|
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC \
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTSR i

|
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN™"* ™=
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YOKNAPATAWPHA ARTS COUNCIL. INC.
STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS -

TAX BASIS
June 30,
2016 2015
Assets
: Cash S 184,130 142,707
: Restricted cash 5,222 6,738
Property and equipment
Building and improvements 646,030 644,663
| Furniture and office equipment 162,897 149,099
; Total Property and equipment 798,927 793,762
Less: Accumulated depreciation (261,653) (224,187)
Net Property and equipment 537,274 569,575
Total Assets $ 726,626 719,020
Liabilities
Payroll taxes payable $ 4,425 3,778
Total Liabilities 4,425 3,778
Net Assets
Unrestricted 716,979 708,504
Temporarily restricted 5,222 6.738
Total Net Assets 722,201 715,242
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 726,626 719,020

See accompanying nhotes and independent accountants' compilation report.

4
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN™ "~
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CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS — TAX BASIS

———————"—"—STATEMENTS OF SUPPORT, REVENUES, AND EXPENSES AND

June 30,
2016 2015
Support and Revenues
Contributions 3 47 665 23,407
Memberships 28,271 27,076
Governmental Grants 106,047 93,128
Events and workshops 133,521 91,098
Rents 109,500 98,046
Investment Income 48 41
Other revenues 72,861 57,305
Other Activities Affecting Unrestricted Net Assets:
Satisfaction of program restrictions 1,759 20,303
Total Support and Revenues 499,672 410,404
Expenses
Program services 334,348 304,590
Management and general 90,894 82,988
Fundraising 65,715 72,878
Total Expenses 490,957 460,456
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 8,715 (50,052)
Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets
Transfers to temporarily restricted net assets (240) -
Net Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 8,475 (50,052)
Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 708,504 758,556
Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year $ 716,979 708,504

See accompanying notes and independent accountants' compilation report.

5
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN™""
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|

|
YOKNAPATAWPHA ARTS COUNCIL INC. \

STATEMENTS OF SUPPORT, REVENUES, AND EXPENSES AND |
CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS —~ TAX BASIS |‘

June 30,
2016 2015 \
Support an vepues I
|
Contributions $ - 3,000 l
Events and workshops - 374 ‘
Investment Income 3 6 |
Other revenues H
Total Support and Revenues 3 3,380 |
|
\
Increase (Decrease) in Temporarlly Restricted Net Assets 3 3,380 I
|
Other Changes in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets “
Net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring H
expenditures satisfying the purpose specificed by donors: I
1l
- Purchase of equipment and building improvements \‘
by Powerhouse Building Funds (1,759) (15,945) I
- Program Service Expenditures - (4,358) “
Transfers from unrestricted net assets 240 - H
Net Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (1,516) (16,923) H
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 6,738 23,661 |
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets, End of Year $ 5,222 6,738 ‘

See accompanying notes and independent accountants’ compilation report. ‘

; |
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC [
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN™ " ™™™" ‘
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

A. Financial Reporting Entity ”

The Yoknapatawpha Arts Council (the Council) is a not-for-profit corporation whose purpose is to I
access, celebrate, and promote the arts with all citizens of the City of Oxford and Lafayette - U
County, Mississippi. The Council is the official arts agency of the City of Oxford and Lafayette I

County. The Council's support comes primarily from individual donors’ contributions and various |
state, city, and arts agency grants. I

B. fncome Tax Basis of Accounting ' H

The Council's accounts are maintained on an income tax basis of accounting, and the financial l
statements reflect only cash received and disbursed. Therefore, revenues, receivables, expenses I
and grants payable and accrued, which would be recognized under accounting principles |
generally accepted in the United States of America and which may be material in amount, are not I
recognized in the accompanying financial statements. ‘

C. Contributions
1. Donor Contributions

Gifts of cash and other assets received without donor stipulations are reported as l
unrestricted revenue and net assets. Gifts received with a donor stipulation that limits their
use are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted revenue and net assets. When a l
donor stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily |
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the “;
statement of support, revenues, and expenses as net assets released from restrictions.

Gifts having donor stipulations which are satisfied in the period the gift is received are H‘
reported as unrestricted revenue and net assets.

Gifts of land, buildings, equipment, and other long-lived assets are reported as unrestricted l
revenue and net assetfs, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how such assets must be I
used, in which case, the gifts are reported as temporarily or permanently restricted revenue }‘
and net assets. Absent explicit donor sfipulations for the time long-lived assets must be l
held, expirations of restrictions resulting in reclassification of temporarily restricted net |

assets as unrestricted net assets are reported when the long-lived asset is placed in |
service. I

2. Contributed Services I

The Council receives a significant amount of contributed time from a number of volunteers I
which does not meet the recognition criteria of Financial Accounting Standards Board ASC

958-605, which states that contributions of services are recognized as revenue at their H
estimated fair value only when the services received create or enhance non-financial I
assets or require specialized skills possessed by the individual providing the service and
the service would typically need to be purchased if not donated. Accordingly, the value of

\
this contributed time has not been determined and is not reflected in the accompanying “
financial statements. ‘
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Note 1 —~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) M
3. Inkind Contributions | I

In addition to receiving cash contributions, the Council receives in-kind contributions of “
goods and services from various donors. It is the policy of the Council to record the
estimated fair value of certain in-kind contributions as revenue in its financial statements

and similarly increase expenses by the like amount. For the years ended June 30, 2016 H
and 2015, the Council has had in-kind contributions of $0 and $300, respectively.

|

D.  Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets I

I

1. Cash |

The Council maintains cash balances in two financial institutions located in Oxford, “

Mississippi, which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to ‘

$250,000. At June 30, 2016, the Council's deposits were fully insured. “

2, Property and Equipment . “
Property and equipment are recorded at cost if purchased and at fair value if contributed.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the related assets and is “
calculated using the straight-line method for all assets.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment for computing depreciation expense “
are determined by the prescribed useful lives of the Internal Revenue Code. I
|

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $37,467 and ‘
$38,223, respectively.

3.  Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Council has been limited by H
donors to a specific time period or purpose.

E. Revenues and Expenses

Support funded by grants is recognized as the Council performs the contracted services or
incurs outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements. Grant activities and
outlays are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency, and, as a result of
such an audit, adjustments could be required.

|

\

1.  Government Grants i
k

|

\

2. Income Taxes H

The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under !‘
Section 501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code and is classified by the Internal Revenue ‘
Service as other than a private foundation. Accordingly, these financial statements include \‘

no provision or liability for income taxes. The Organization's open audit periods are 2013 - ;
2015. |
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3.  Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of supporting the various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statement of support, revenue, and expenses. Certain costs

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

have been allocated among the program, management and general, and fund raising
categories based on actual direct expenditures and cost allocations based upon estimates
of time spent by Council management.

F. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from the estimates.

Note 2 ~ Significant Concentrations
Significant concentrations of revenues and support were as follows for the years ending June 30:

Percentage of Total Revenues

Source of Revenue or Support 2016 2015
Rental of Powerhouse Building 22% 25%
City of Oxford, Mississippi 9% 12%
State of Mississippi 9% 8%
Lafayette County, Mississippi 4% 4%

Note 3 - CREATE Foundation Endowment Fund

On June 13, 2011, the Yoknapatawpha Arts Council (the Council) entered into an agresment with the
CREATE Foundation (the Foundation) to establish a charitable designated endowment fund. The
Foundation is a nonprofit Mississippi corporation exempt from taxation under Internal Revenue Code
Section 501(c)(3). Under the terms of the agreement, the Council irrevocably transferred $10,000 to
establish the fund. Additional contributions of $6,700 were made during the year ended June 30, 2016.
The fund is a component unit of the Foundation and is held as part of the general assets of the
Foundation. The annual earnings allocable to the fund are available for distribution to the Organization.
Neither the fund principal nor the net appreciation of fund principal, realized or unrealized may be
committed, granted, or expended. The funds distributed to the Council may be expended only for
purposes consistent with the exempt status of the Foundation. No distributions from the Foundation have
been made to the Council. As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the fund balance was $28,221 and $20,538,
respectively. As of December 31, 2016, the total funds available for distribution were S736.
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YOKNAPATAWPHA ARTS COUNCIL INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 — Subsequent Events

Events that occur after the statement of assets, liabilities, and net assets — income tax basis date but
before the financial statements are available to be issued, must be evaluated for recognition and
disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the
financial statement date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events
which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the statement of assets, liabilities, and net
assets — income tax basis date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management of the
Yoknapatawpha Arts Council evaluated the activity of the council through May 12, 2017, and determined
that there were no subsequent events that should be noted in the financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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YOKNAPATAWPHA ARTS COUNCIL INC. |
SCHEDULES OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES ~ TAX BASIS |

FOR THE YEARS ENDED |
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FUND-
SERVICES & GENERAL RAISING TOTAL
Juno 39, June 30, June 30, June 30,
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 2016 2016 2016 2016 20168 2016 2016 2016
Adver:sing 3 4,002 B,012 2,568 5,924 2,085 842 § 8,656 14,878 [
Artlst and musicien fees 149,981 101,008 617 1,797 1.850 19,378 152,448 122,184
Bank charges - - 7,695 3,882 - - 7.685 3,862
Board oxponse - - 324 245 - - 324 245
Casuel labor - - 200 - - - 200 -
Cleaning and melntanance 6,792 6,418 2,573 2,333 2,022 4,833 11,387 10,685
Concessicns 4,572 13,637 - - 5,272 - 9,844 13,627
Confarsnces . - 1,045 51 . . 1,045 51 |
Deproclation 22,350 23,182 8,485 8,423 8,651 8,618 37,466 38,223 ;
Dues and subscrigtions 180 15 1,378 1,168 400 160 1,858 4,334
Employee bonofits 3,307 2,175 5,556 2,298 4,365 2,588 13228 8,060 I
Equy rert and mals 1c6 1,278 776 - - - - 1278 778
Galiey stora 522 8,878 - - 3,176 2941 3,608 11,817
Glfts and awarcs 837 870 267 130 50 - 1,154 1,0C0
Grats 31,379 20,190 50 134 20 31,428 20,364 ‘
Hospitslity 779 7,844 357 763 £68 <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>